NSF RFP No. DACS08P2215.A06 – Questions and Answers
	Number
	Questions and Answers

	
	
	

	139.
	Question a
	Requiring normalized FTEs and average salaries by FTE may result in errors or misinterpretations that could potentially allow one firm to be advantaged over another and result in a disconnect with attachment L4.   The NSF may want to remove the requirement to normalize against 1,880 for the annual number of working hours.  Variations in the number of hours used to define a working year by different bidders could result in a skewing of the FTE numbers. 

	
	Question b
	The instructions for completing Attachment L-8 require input for CLIN 0001.1 only.  [The offeror] believes all offerors should complete an Attachment L-8 for each period of performance.  Our technical and management solutions include staffing and cost reductions based on efficiencies, innovations, and technologies throughout the life of the contract.  We believe evaluating the base period only does not provide an accurate depiction of the value of our overall bid. 

	
	Question c
	Please explain how the new L-8 Mandatory Crosswalk will be used in conducting evaluations. Will section M Evaluation Criteria be revised accordingly?

	
	Question d
	Given that NSF is only asking for the first full year of the contract (CLIN 0001.1) how will out year efficiencies and other changes in technical approach be evaluated?

	
	Question e
	Please explain how this information [L-8, column titled “Average Salary by FTE”] will be incorporated into section M for evaluation.

	
	Question f
	Will NSF please clarify if and how the Offeror’s completed Mandatory Crosswalk for CLIN 0001.1 will be evaluated in relation to the comprehensive Volume IV Cost Price Proposal encompassing all CLINs for purposes of determining price/cost reasonableness and realism as set forth in RFP Section M.6.3 Evaluation Factor 3 - Cost/Price? And in general, please describe how/for what purpose the Mandatory Crosswalk will be used.

	
	Answer
	The evaluation criteria remain unchanged.  Attachment L-8’s purpose is to aid in understanding offerors’ cost proposals to facilitate their comparison with the Independent Government Cost Estimate.  Information previously submitted will be assessed as part of the agency’s cost evaluation.

	
	
	

	140.
	Question
	Since the proposed Attachment L8 of the draft amendment mirrors most of the data required for Attachment L5, for ease and speed of completing the Attachment L8, we recommend the deletion of “Deployment and Hardship Pay” as an entry.  This will allow alignment of the two respective attachments.

	
	Answer
	Deployment and Hardship Pay was added to assist offerors in presentation of information from the L-5 WBS Summary.  If deployment or hazardous duty pay is not provided then no entry is required.

	
	
	

	141.
	Question
	To avoid potential misinterpretations, it is recommended that NSF require the offerors to submit assumptions with attachment L8. 

	
	Answer
	Offerer cost assumptions should have been included in the Basis of Estimate.  Offeror technical assumptions made in the preparation of its proposal should have been included in the Technical volume.  To assist offerors in cross-walking their WBS structure to L-8 WBS structure, we have included a column for offerors to explain their rationale for assigning work to the L-8 WBS structure.

	
	
	

	142.
	Question
	In accordance with the instructions for completing Attachment L-8, [the offeror] will not revise our offer at this time.  However, we would like to point out that by altering the method of calculation (i.e. using averages and normalizing the FTE Count) to arrive at a total cost apportioned across the NSF provided WBS introduces the possibility for a very small variance or differential from our cost submitted in Volume IV, Cost Price Proposal.  This would not represent a revision to our pricing, only indicative of the application of percentages across a new WBS and associated iterative rounding.  

	
	Answer
	The comment is acknowledged.  Should there be any discrepancies between information presented in Attachment L-8 and the cost information submitted in Volume IV, “Cost Price Proposal,” the latter shall control.

	
	
	

	143.
	Question
	Amendment 006 Instructions for Completing Attachment L-8 title directs Offerors to provide a crosswalk of their proposed WBS structure to functional areas identified in Section C, Statement of Objectives (SOO). However, the spreadsheet requires Offerors to crosswalk their proposed WBS structure to an NSF-provided WBS structure that specifies Level 5 scope. A number of the Level 5 scope items in the NSF WBS structure include detail that was not provided in the SOO or the sample WBS provided as Attachment L-6 of the RFP. As a result, there may be gaps between the Offeror’s proposed WBS and the NSF-provided WBS in the spreadsheet that would not exist if this crosswalk was made to the SOO. Where such gaps exist between the Offeror Level 5 scope and the NSF Level 5 WBS descriptions, will NSF exclude these variances from consideration when reviewing the mandatory crosswalk?

	
	Answer
	Attachment L-8 includes WBS 1.1.4.1, “Other HQ & Misc,” and its seven sub-WBSs elements at level 5.  To the extent that differences exist due to treatment of cost as direct vs. indirect, identify indirect functions in the column titled “Explanation” and do not complete the remaining columns for the affected WBS.

Attachment L-8, as set forth in its draft form, included the following WBS elements at level 5 that were not included in Attachment L-6 or the Statement of Objectives, or as in the case of WBS 1.2.4.2.xx, were not meant to be addressed within CLIN 0001.1:

· 1.2.2.4.09

Long Duration Balloon
· 1.2.4.2.xx

Science Projects, Project Specific Costs
· 1.3.1.1.02

SAS Department Support
· 1.4.2.5.07

Energy Conservation
· 1.5.1.1.06

Calibration Laboratory
These have been deleted from Attachment L-8 in its final form.  

	
	
	

	144.
	Question
	I.A. “… NSF will not make award without conducting discussions…” Will NSF please define their expectations, scope, and anticipated timing involved with conducting discussions? For example, will discussions include such things as written questions and responses, interviews or orals, etc.?

I.B. “…offerors that have not been eliminated from the competition…”  Please provide a timeframe for which the down select of Offerors will occur?

	
	Answer
	NSF is continuing to develop scheduling details and will publish corresponding milestone dates soon.  It is anticipated that discussions will include submission of written responses to evaluation notices provided concurrently with notification to offerors that have been selected for the competitive range.  Subsequent to receipt of written responses and their review by NSF, oral discussions will be conducted that will include the opportunity for offerors to present their proposals and responses to evaluation notices to agency personnel, and questioning by agency personnel about aspects of the proposal and evaluation notice responses.  The agency is also considering but has not yet made a decision concerning the contemporaneous presentation of an offeror developed solution to a hypothetical scenario prepared by NSF and presented to the offeror earlier the same day.

	
	
	

	145.


	Question
	2.4.2  Treatment of Subcontractor Costs…” Are the second tier subcontractor worksheets requested only for those second tier subcontractors that exceed the RFP thresholds for subcontractor cost/price data (L.11.2.2)?

	
	Answer
	That is correct.

	
	
	

	146.


	Question
	2.4.3  Treatment of Subcontractor Costs…” Please clarify how Offerors are to delineate within the Mandatory Crosswalk instances where specific subcontractor information is considered proprietary and therefore not included in Offerors’ electronic CD submittal.

Please confirm that it is acceptable for Offeror to include the requisite subcontractor proprietary submittal(s) in sealed separate envelope(s) within Offeror’s submittal.

	
	Answer
	Where specific subcontractor information is considered proprietary, such information may be submitted separately in a sealed envelope.  The offeror is responsible for ensuring that information submitted separately is consistent with information submitted by the offeror.

	
	
	

	147.


	Question
	3.  Format for Submission: Please confirm that no print area formatting of the Mandatory Crosswalk is expected.

	
	Answer
	Information shall be submitted in spreadsheet form on CD-ROM.  There is no required print area formatting.

	
	
	

	148.


	Question
	May Offerors include formulas in the crosswalk spreadsheet?

	
	Answer
	Formulas shall be included in the crosswalk spreadsheet per RFP Section L.6.3 and Section L.11.5.

	
	
	

	149.


	Question
	1.2.4.2 Science Projects; 1.2.4.2.x.x.x Project Specific costs by Project Number, Note Separate CLIN NTE priced by NSF: There was no separate CLIN NTE priced by NSF in the sample WBS provided with the RFP. What information does NSF anticipate in this field?

	
	Answer
	WBS 1.2.4.2, “Science Projects,” is addressed at CLIN 000X.5, “Major Construction and Special Projects.”  Offerors need not enter any information for this WBS.

	
	
	

	150.


	Question a
	Numbering concerns:  The crosswalk sequence skips some levels and duplicates a few levels. Was this intentional or will NSF be correcting these numbers? For instance:

· 1.3.4 is missing

· 1.3.4.2.06 & 07 are out of sequence within 1.3.4.1

· 1.3.4.2 is missing

· 1.4.2.11.01 is duplicated

· 1.5.7.3.01 is duplicated

	
	Question b
	Line 446, WBS 1.4.211.01 "McMurdo - Recreation", appears to be a duplicate of line 445, WBS 1.4.2.11.01 "McMurdo Recreation".  Should Line 446 be Deleted?

	
	Question c
	Line 608, WBS 1.5.7.1.01 "Terminal Operations" appears to be misnumbered based on the higher level WBS shown on line 607.  Should Line 608 be changed to WBS 1.5.7.2.01?

	
	Question d
	Line 613, WBS 1.5.7.3.01 "Terminal Operations NZ", has the same WBS number as line 614, WBS 1.5.7.3.01 "Shipping Agents - Other Ports".  Should line 614 be changed to WBS 1.5.7.3.02 and then the following line 615 changed to WBS 1.5.7.3.03 "SFA Christchurch Support"?

	
	Answer
	Corrected.  Refer to Attachment L-8 for corresponding corrections.

	
	
	

	151.
	Question a
	In regard to revisions not being accepted at this time, can NSF further define “revisions”? Is it acceptable for an offeror to correct administrative errors? For example; if in the process of aligning our WBS to the Government’s WBS we see that we have incorrectly allocated a portion of the Program Manager’s time to the South Pole, can this be corrected or otherwise identified as an error?  Recommend offerors, at a minimum, be permitted to provide a separate addendum noting such administrative errors.

	
	Question b
	It is our understanding that Attachment L-8 for CLIN 0001.1 will be completed based on current submission. Is this correct?  Also, per question above, recommend that offerors, at a minimum, be permitted to provide a separate addendum noting administrative errors.

	
	Answer
	Crosswalk submissions are to be based upon cost proposals as submitted.  Correction of errors in offerors’ proposals shall be addressed per FAR 52.215-1(c)(6).

	
	
	

	152.


	Question
	Please confirm that Total Cost means cost through G&A, i.e. all cost excluding fee.

	
	Answer
	That is correct.

	
	
	

	153.


	Question a
	Background. The nature of USAP operations constrains contractors in their approach to deploying and redeploying their workforce over periods of time each season based on aircraft/vessel schedules and berthing availability. Additionally since the number of contract staff required during each season is based on the supported population, the number of contractor personnel required at each location varies. Thus, at one point in each season the total contractor staffing level reaches a ‘zenith’ before redeployment begins. To effectively evaluate staffing for each WBS at each location requires normalization of the individual headcount. However, each offeror may have a different approach to deployment and redeployment and thus would make the normalization process difficult to determine.  

Question/Comment 1: Please explain how this information will be incorporated into section M for evaluation? 

Question/Comment 2: Can the first sentence of this paragraph be further defined or clarified?  

Question/Comment 3: The formula provided (1 ÷ (the count of WBSs an individual is performing under)) does not accurately allocate an individual’s time. For example, if an individual works only a few hours in one WBS and many hours in another WBS then the distribution of the Individual is not accurately represented in the data requested. Recommend bidders be directed to use the allocation according to their pricing model.

	
	Question b
	In regard to 1.6 (Individuals), the number of individuals will depend on winter versus summer seasons. What specific information is NSF requesting for this column? 

	
	Answer
	In corresponding order:

· The evaluation criteria remain unchanged.  Attachment L-8’s purpose is to aid in understanding offerors’ cost proposals to facilitate their comparison with the Independent Government Cost Estimate.  Information previously submitted will be assessed as part of the agency’s cost evaluation.
· This question presumes a level of precision that NSF is not seeking in the presentation of cost proposals, nor is necessary to assess their reasonableness and realism.  Information has been made available per the Annual Program Plans posted in the online library sufficient to achieve the level of precision required by this solicitation.  Previous guidance on this matter was provided by answers set forth at Amendment 01, Question 10, and Amendment 03, Questions 34, 35, 40, 47 and 58.
· These questions are moot.  The column “Individuals” is no longer included in the crosswalk schedule.

	
	
	

	154.


	Question a
	Question/Comment 1: Please explain how this information (L-8, column titled “Location”) will be incorporated into section M for evaluation.

Question/Comment 2: Since Punta Arenas is not listed in the locations, is it a correct assumption that it would be included in Other Locations (1.7.7)? 

Question/Comment 3: There is no breakout for HQ or Port Hueneme.  Is it correct to assume that work at HQ and Port Hueneme is combined as CONUS (1.7.1)?

Question/Comment 4: Recommend further definition/clarification of the term “majority”.  For example, personnel deploying from HQ to the “ice” for five months will reflect 100% of their time at HQ?

	
	Question b
	Should column W "Individuals" include the Prime and all Subcontractors, or the Prime only with Subcontractor "Individuals" documented in their separate spreadsheets?

	
	NSF
	The questions are moot.  These columns are no longer included in the crosswalk schedule.  

	
	
	

	155.
	Question a
	Data provided in the RFP for equipment and accountable property was not adequate to define lifecycle cost. Recommend plug numbers for this value to eliminate variability between offerors.

	
	Question b
	Data provided in the RFP was not adequate to make an accurate determination of materials and supplies; e.g. future deployment schedules as well as station and camp loading. There will be variability due to several factors; fluctuations in fuel, airfare, escalation, inflation, etc. Recommend plug numbers for Materials & Supplies.

	
	Question c
	In regard to 1.14 (Equipment & Accountable Property) and 1.15 (Materials and Supplies), we recommend these categories be combined into a total cost by WBS.  Data provided in the reading room was not sufficient to break out individual categories for each WBS. 

	
	Answer
	Information has been made available per the Annual Program Plans posted in the online library sufficient to achieve the level of precision required by this solicitation.  Classification of estimated costs for these expense items shall be consistent with the offeror’s disclosed accounting practices.

	
	
	

	156.


	Question
	In the Cost volume, Travel and IT costs were broken out separately. Should these costs be combined into the “Any Other Direct Costs” column?

	
	Answer
	That is correct, unless the IT costs constitute Equipment & Accountable Property.

	
	
	

	157.


	Question
	Please clarify if the intent of allowing an additional column is only intended for offerors to provide additional explanations for their cost preparation methodology and not for use in amplifying their technical & management approach. Unless this paragraph is modified, the current definition could be broadly interpreted to authorize offerors to place additional technical narrative in this column that should have been limited to the 200 page count restriction in the technical & management proposal.  

	
	Answer
	The provision of the additional column is intended solely to account for differences in offeror cost preparation methodology.  For example, an offeror may utilize a cost structure that applies a materials handling or subcontract rate separately from O/H and G&A.  Offerors are not to interpret this as an opportunity to provide additional technical narrative beyond solicitation page restrictions.  

	
	
	

	158.


	Question
	Based on the wording in this paragraph, i.e. “Complete this entry when anything other than a one-to-one correspondence between NSF WBS and the offerors’ WBS at level 5 occurs”; potentially every WBS level 5 will require an explanation. Please further define when an explanation will be required.

	
	Answer
	If an offeror WBS does not correspond directly to a WBS described in Attachment L-8 then the offeror will need to explain their rationale for cross-walking their WBS structure to the Attachment L-8 WBS structure.

	
	
	

	159.


	Question
	In regard to subcontractor data, proprietary data such as direct labor cost and burdens will be reported based on instruction 2.4. We assume that the only subcontractor data to be rolled up at the prime level includes the data described in 1.1 – 1.8 (Offeror WBS Number, Title, Description, Performance Work Statement, Total Cost, Individuals, Location and Normalized FTE Count), and that 1.16 Consultants and Subcontracts, as well as any associated burden, will be provided at the prime level. Please confirm that this assumption is correct.

	
	Answer
	At the Prime level that is correct.  Assuming that the subcontractor cost information was also required ($13.5 M or $1M per year) the subcontractor shall then complete a separate WBS sheet from tab titled “1st Tier” using the same WBS number as the offeror.

	
	
	

	160.


	Question
	In regard to 1.9 (Average Salary by FTE) and 1.10 (Salary costs), we recommend that these columns be titled “Average Direct Labor Costs”, and “Total Direct Labor Costs” which would be provided consistent with company disclosure statements and/or proposals. 

	
	Answer
	Submission of information using titles consistent with disclosed accounting practices is permitted provided that the information completely addresses NSF’s requirements and can be matched to NSF’s column format.

	
	
	

	161.


	Question a
	In regard to 1.11 (Deployment Hardship Pay), we recommend that WBS element 1.1.4.1.08 (Remote duty pay differential) be eliminated from the matrix and any remote location differential be included with Deployment Hardship Pay. 

	
	Question b
	WBS 1.1.4.1.08 in Attachment L-8 is described as "Remote Duty Pay Differential" for South Pole only.  However, column W in the provided template covers "Deployment Hardship Pay".  Is it the governments intent that all pay differentials for South Pole, across all WBS elements, are isolated in WBS 1.1.4.1.08, but all other pay differentials are allocated to each WBS?  Is there special treatment of other pay differentials?  The separate treatment of South Pole differentials will make it very difficult to map to the offeror's proposed costs, which have differentials allocated appropriately to each WBS element.

	
	Answer
	Agree.  Refer to Attachment L-8 for corresponding corrections.

	
	
	

	162.
	Question
	In regard to 1.12 (Fringe Benefit Costs), 1.13 (Overhead Costs) and 1.18 (G&A), we recommend that these and any other indirect costs be combined as “Total Indirect Costs” by WBS in order to reduce complexity of the response and subsequent evaluation.  Companies allocate indirect costs differently and may not have had three separate categories in their original submittals. Each company has submitted their disclosure statement detailing what elements are included in their burdens and how they are applied. 

	
	Answer
	Each company should present costs in accordance with their disclosed accounting practices and may not need to utilize all three columns.  If for example the company only uses a Fringe and G&A rate structure, then the Overhead column can be zeroed out.  

	
	
	

	163.
	Question a
	Since there is a requirement to obtain additional information from sub-contractors, we suggest that the offerors be given forty-five (45) days to provide responses.  The additional 15 days would allow the prime contactor sufficient time to review and request any necessary corrections to submissions from the subcontractor(s).

	
	Question b
	Considerable effort will be required to align a bidder’s WBS with the newly restructured WBS. Recommend a minimum of 60 days turnaround from issuance.

	
	Answer
	Completed crosswalk schedules are due not later than Tuesday, November 24, 2009 at 4:00 pm local time.  Any submittal received after the date and time specified herein will be handled in accordance with FAR 52.215-1.
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